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Via Certified Mail/Return Receipt Requested
Office of the Attorney General

Attention: Opinion Committee

P.O. Box 12548

Austin, Texas 78711-2548

Re:  Somervell County Hospital District Election
Request for Opinion — Terms of Office for Board of Directors following Tie Vote

Dear Sir or Madam:

This request for opinion is made pursuant to §402.042 of the Texas Government Code and
involves the resolution of a tie vote in the initial election of the Somervell County Hospital
District’s Board of Directors and the terms of office for the elected officers.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Somervell County Hospital District (“District”) was created by election in May, 2013 and
organized under the provisions of Chapter 286 of the Texas Health and Safety Code. The petition
to create the district was filed under terms and conditions pursuant to §286.021, et seq., of the
Health and Safety Code. The petition is attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein. The
temporary directors of the District were named in the petition and appointed to serve by the
Somervell County Commissioners Court until such time as an election could be held pursuant to
§§286.041-286.050 of the Health and Safety Code. The election was held in May, 2014 with
eighteen (18) candidates vying for seven (7) seats as permanent directors. The directors would be
elected at large, with the top seven candidates receiving the most votes to serve as directors.
Seven individuals did receive the highest number of votes. However, the fourth and fifth place
finishers received the same number of votes. This created a conflict in who would serve two-year
terms and who would serve one-year terms. §286.042(b)(2) dictates the number of directors
equal to a majority of the directors who receive the highest number of votes at the initial election
serve for a term of two years, and, (b)(3) the remaining directors serve for a term of one year.
The petition to create the district called for the four directors who receive the most votes to serve
for two years and the remaining three directors to serve for one year.

QUESTION PRESENTED

Do the fourth and fifth place finishers equal a “majority” under §286.042(b)(2) and each serve
two year terms leaving two directors (the sixth and seventh place finishers) to serve one year



terms or does the tie vote have to be resolved pursuant to §2.002 of the Texas Election Code to
ensure that four directors serve two year terms and three directors serve one year terms?

ARGUMENT

Those who have argued that the fourth and fifth place finishers who received the same number of
votes should each serve two year terms (leaving a 5/2 split in the election cycle) believe that the
majority wording in §286.042(b)(2) moves both the fourth and fifth place finishers into the
majority as intended by the Health and Safety Code provisions. Therefore, resolving the tie vote
is unnecessary. The 4/3 split dictated in the petition to create the district was impermissible under
§286.022. Further, §2.002 of the Election Code does not apply because the election did not
require a plurality vote.

Those who have argued that the tie vote must be resolved under §2.002 of the Election Code
believe that both the petition to create the district which dictates a 4/3 split and the “majority”
wording in §286.042(b) each require that four directors serve two year terms and three directors
serve one year terms. Only four directors could make a majority under the clear reading of both
the petition and the intent of the Health and Safety Code provisions. To find otherwise would
mean that all seven could serve two year terms had the fourth, fifth, sixth, and seventh place
finishers all received the same number of votes. §286.022 does dictate the method by which the
permanent directors will be elected, including how elected (at large) and how the terms of office
will be divided (4/3 majority).

CONCLUSION

We respectfully request your opinion to help resolve these disputed interpretations. Although we
understand that your office has 180 days to issue an opinion, we are hopeful to have your answer
in time for the May, 2015 election cycle. The filing deadline is likely to fall in early December,
2014. It-is my understanding that the district’s board of directors is ready to cast lots to resolve
the tie should your opinion determine they should do so. Thank you for your assistance with this
matter.

Sincerely,

oy

Andrew Lucas
Somervell County Attorney
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